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Because of the many situations where a general contracting firm may be subject to the 
requirements of both EPA’s MSGP and EPA’s CGP, AGC members are uniquely burdened by 
inconsistencies in stormwater pollution prevention measures and standards applicable to active 
construction sites versus industrial operations (whether they be related to off-site operations or 
unrelated facilities at which construction occurs).    
 
 
Limitations on Washwaters 
 
To help construction companies implement and maintain effective pollution prevention measures 
to minimize equipment tracking of materials both at their construction sites and at their related 
industrial facilities, it is important for EPA’s MSGP and CGP to be consistent and practical in 
how they address construction equipment washwater.  AGC members are concerned that 
provisions in the 2013 draft MSGP would inhibit contractors from using wash stations to remove 
sediment from equipment before it leaves any site covered by the MSGP; however, this practice 
is often necessary as a practical means of meeting the requirements of EPA’s CGP.   
 
Specifically, the 2013 draft MSGP, Part 2.1.2.1, clearly states that “the discharge of vehicle and 
equipment washwater is not authorized by the permit.”  The 2013 draft MSGP also prohibits the 
discharge of washwaters that have “come into contact with oil and grease deposits … unless the 
deposits have been cleaned up using dry clean-up methods.”  This language would seem to 
prevent contractors from using wash stations to remove sediment from vehicles before they leave 
any site covered by the MSGP—unless they design completely self-contained water recycling 
systems to collect, store, treat and redeliver (or retain) the water, in each instance.  AGC 
members report that this type of system is often impractical and cost-prohibitive out in the field 
(i.e., at materials source sites and batching locations that are not eligible for coverage under a 
CGP) and inconsistent with the pollution prevention standards set forth under EPA’s current 
CGP, as further explained below.   
 
In addition, a prohibition against the discharge of vehicle and equipment washwater—without 
exception or qualification—would be counterproductive to meeting other sections of the 2013 
draft MSGP.  For example, the 2013 draft MSGP, Part 2.1.2.10 - Dust Generation and Vehicle 
Tracking of Industrial Materials, states: “You must minimize generation of dust and off-site 
tracking of raw, final, or waste materials.”  Another section of the 2013 draft MSGP, Part 3.1 - 
Routine Facility Inspections, states: “During the inspection you must examine or look out for … 
offsite tracking of industrial or waste materials, or sediment where vehicles enter or exit the site” 
(emphasis added).  To meet above-referenced requirements, the draft MSGP Fact Sheet (page 
34) cites the following measures as effective ways to reduce vehicle tracking of materials: 
“setting up a wash site or separate pad to clean vehicles prior to their leaving the site.”    
 
AGC also is concerned with the 2013 draft MSGP, Part 2.1.2.1 - Minimize Exposure, which 
would require permittees to perform all vehicle and/or equipment cleaning operations indoors, 
under cover or in bermed areas that prevent runoff and run-on and also that capture any 
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This requirement could be interpreted such that any mixing of industrial stormwater with any 
non-stormwater not otherwise listed in the permit removes or somehow vitiates the coverage for 
the permitted industrial stormwater discharge in that combined discharge.  In other words, not 
only is the non-stormwater portion not covered by the MSGP (logical solution), but the 
implication is that the MSGP-covered part of that combined discharge somehow also loses its 
MSGP protection (illogical solution).  The draft MSGP Fact Sheet implies that the former is 
EPA’s intent (to force alternative permit coverage of the otherwise unpermitted non-stormwater), 
but EPA’s true intent is not explained with sufficient precision.   
 
Both the permit language and the draft MSGP Fact Sheet need more clarity and EPA should 
proceed cautiously if it attempts to clarify the applicability of the permit shield in the final 
MSGP to ensure that it is not creating unwarranted and unfair unintended consequences.  The 
permit shield provision of the CWA plays an important role in the NPDES permitting scheme 
and should not be applied in a more restrictive manner within this general permitting setting than 
in any other NPDES permit. 
 
 
Conclusion 
 
AGC appreciates the opportunity to comment.  Thank you for taking our concerns into account.  
If you have any questions, please contact me at pilconisl@agc.org or (703) 837-5332.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Leah F. Pilconis 
Senior Environmental Advisor to AGC of America 
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Figure 1.  Photographic demonstration of a “facility” site map that is part of a SWPPP. 
 
 

 

 


